
 
 

 

MEETING PACKET 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
 

Thursday, May 16, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





 

1 

 

 
 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 
DRAFT MEETING MINUTES 

 
May 2, 2019,   6:00 PM 

 

The Community Development Advisory Committee met on Monday, May 2, 2019 at 6:00 PM 
in the Council Chambers, City Hall Complex, 1522 Texas Parkway, Missouri City, Texas with 
the following in attendance: 
 

 Eunice Reiter, Committee Chairperson 

 Monica Rasmus, Committee Vice Chairperson 

 Jeffrey Boney, Councilmember, Committee member 

 Bertha Eugene, Committee member 

 Reginald Pearson, Committee member 

 
Absent were: 

  Chris Preston, Mayor Pro Tem, Committee member 

  Zelia Brown, Committee member 

 
 
Also in attendance were City staff representatives: Bill Atkinson, Assistant City Manager; 
James Santangelo, Assistant City Attorney; Otis Spriggs, Development Services Director; 
Chalisa Dixon, Community Development Coordinator; Cynthia Session-Mathis, Program 
Housing Rehab Recipient.  
   
1. Roll call.  

Chairperson Reiter called the meeting to order at 6:03 pm. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF THE January 29, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
 
Chairperson Reiter called for a motion to accept the January 29, 2019 Community 
Development Advisory Committee meeting minutes. 

 
Motion:  Approval of the January 29, 2019 minutes. 

 
      The vote as follows: 
 
Ayes:  Chairperson Reiter; Committee member Rasmus: Councilmember, Committee 
member Boney; Committee member Pearson; Committee member Eugene. 
 
     Nays:  None. 
 
     The minutes were approved as corrected.  
 
 

 



 

2 

 

3. HOUSING REHABILITATION PROGRAM 
a)   Mathis – Scope of Work: Flooring, Oven and Window Security Bar mechanism.  

 
Program Coordinator, Chalisa Dixon presented this item. Ms. Dixon informed that Ms. 
Session–Mathis was originally a participant of the program 2016 year. She was originally 
serviced through Habitat for Humanity, and currently being serviced through Santex 
Construction. There were items that were originally quoted and placed on the proposal that 
required CDAC, Community Development Advisory Committee, review.  
 
Ms. Dixon informed that the cooktop in the kitchen was originally quoted for the 
replacement of the knobs and the inspection of the cooktop and oven instruments. Santex 
Construction performed an inspection and an infestation was identified which caused 
issues with the cooktop functionality. The control panel needed replacing; those services 
exceeded the original amount presented in the contract.  
 
Ms. Dixon informed that there was an issue with the flooring. Originally, certain areas of 
flooring were quoted for replacement of the peeling hardwood floors. Santex Construction 
identified that the reason for the peeling was due to not having a moisture barrier between 
the concrete and the flooring. In the process of work throughout the house, some areas 
that were originally identified, started to expand due to continued moisture release and 
moving of furniture. Ms. Dixon informed that Santex Construction suggested to replace all 
of the flooring. Otherwise, the problem would still persist with a spot treatment.  
 
Ms. Dixon informed that the burglar bars were another issue. Three windows in the home 
currently secured with double cylinder key locks. City inspectors identified that the locks 
would be a fire safety code violation. Santex Construction presented certain latches that 
would allow for a locking mechanism from the inside, however, not a key or security lock. 
Ms. Session-Mathis raised concerns about there not being a security lock. She, Ms. 
Session-Mathis presented options that would allow security from the exterior, with the 
freedom to exit in case of an emergency. Ms. Dixon informed that those items would be 
custom with retro fitting.  
 
Chair Reiter asked if it would be covered by the program. 
 
Ms. Dixon informed that it would still be a safety issue as far as exiting the property in case 
of an emergency. There was a concern about the locks being custom and not being 
covered by the program. 
 
Director of Development Services, Otis Spriggs informed that the situation with code is a 
safety issue. The idea was to remove the keyed lock, and to provide a latch system. A 
couple of options were suggested. 
 
Chair Reiter asked if the options worked. 
 
Mr. Spriggs informed that the concern of the resident was if someone broke the window, 
they could reach around and unlatch it.  
 
Committee member Pearson asked if the key was in the lock at all times. 
 
Ms. Session-Mathis informed that the key was currently in the lock. If someone was to 
break in the window, they would be able to turn the key.  
 



 

3 

 

Committee member Pearson asked if prior to being made aware that it is out of code, has 
the key been kept to the side. 
 
Ms. Session-Mathis informed that she kept the key in the lock; at times it would be removed. 
As far as having a quick access in case of a fire, she should not have to look for the key. A 
barrel bolt was proposed, which is like a chain that is on a door. It does not address the 
security aspect. Ms. Session-Mathis informed that she did not know that it was outside the 
scope of the program. 
 
Mr. Spriggs informed that staff did not inform that it was outside of the scope of the program. 
As a priority, issues of life safety, roofing and climate control where homes could not be 
occupied, judgement calls have to be made on items like the keyed lock. The program has 
to move to the next projects that have been waiting in the que or several months. Projects 
have to be prioritized according to home deterioration and health and safety needs.   
 
Committee member Pearson informed that when the term “being custom” is applied, it 
meant that it deviates from the stock options. 
 
Ms. Dixon added, “That it is not an off-the-shelf product.” 
 
Committee member Pearson confirmed, “Yes.” Any modifications that would have to be 
welded and modified, is where the customization comes in.  
 
Ms. Session-Mathis informed that the recommendations she proposed were researched by 
herself.  
 
Chair Reiter asked Ms. Session-Mathis if she understood by law, the Committee is 
restricted to $20,000 per applicant. 
 
Ms. Session-Mathis replied, “No, I did not know that.” 
 
Ms. Dixon informed that the repair of the stove exceeded the cost of replacement. The 
repair was $850; to replace was $578. Prior to signing the contract, Ms. Session-Mathis 
was presented with an option for a new stove. However, the stove presented was black or 
white and the current stove is stainless steel. Ms. Session-Mathis wanted something of the 
same caliber; however, the program does not allow that option. It allows for a working stove.  
 
Ms. Session-Mathis asked if there was a restriction that would not allow for the stainless 
steel. 
 
Ms. Dixon informed that like the customization of the previous item, it is more of a builder’s 
grade. The program would pay for builder’s grade appliances. 
 
Ms. Session-Mathis informed that her other appliances were stainless steel and that was 
her reason for wanting a stainless steel stove. 
 
Committee member Pearson informed that was understood, however, there are guidelines 
that had to be followed. A decision had to be made. Based on the color, it was understood 
that Ms. Session-Mathis had stainless steel. Committee member Boney asked Ms. 
Session-Mathis for her preference. 
 
Ms. Session-Mathis replied, “Repair.”  
 



 

4 

 

Committee member Boney informed that that exceeded the replacement cost. Due to the 
guidelines, it would not work. 

 
Committee member Pearson informed that either the Committee denied all together, or Ms. 
Session-Mathis had to select a replacement.  
 
Ms. Session-Mathis asked if she could pay the difference of $300. 
 
Committee member Pearson informed that he did not know if that was possible.  
 
Ms. Dixon asked Ms. Session-Mathis if she meant for an upgraded stainless steel stove, 
or to repair her existing stove.  
 
Ms. Session-Mathis replied, “They pay the $500 and I pay the $300.” 
 
Committee member Pearson asked Ms. Session-Mathis if she meant that they (CDBG) 
would pay the $578 and she would pay the difference. 
 
Mr. Spriggs informed that if the current stove was repaired, other issues could occur. There 
were not any guarantees on it. That would be his concern as a homeowner. 
 
Ms. Session-Mathis asked Mr. Spriggs by guarantee, was he speaking about warranty.  
 
Mr. Spriggs replied, “Right.” 
 
Ms. Session-Mathis asked if a year of warranty was provided. 
 
Mr. Spriggs informed that there was a year of warranty for the repairs.  
  
Committee member Pearson informed that it is an investment, so it would be an investment 
to have a new stove all together with a long warranty. Whether it was Ms. Session-Mathis’ 
investment of additional funds or the program’s, it was still an investment.  
 
Mr. Spriggs informed that the preference of staff is to not have side deals where the owner 
and the program’s contractor had a contract of additional work, with owner payment. Staff 
would need to speak with the City’s Legal Department.  
 
Ms. Session-Mathis informed that with the particular contract, they have had instances of 
owner provided money out of their pocket.  
 
Mr. Spriggs informed that the owner had materials like paint that they made available for 
the repair, which was different. 
 
Ms. Session-Mathis informed that it was still money out of pocket that was permitted. 
 
Ms. Dixon informed that as far as the repair, repairing the cooktop, touchpad and 
replacement of the knobs, it could be an issue of liability.  
 
Chairperson Reiter asked Ms. Session-Mathis what was most important of the stove, floor 
and burglar bars. 
 
Ms. Session-Mathis asked if she could choose two. 
 
Chairperson Reiter replied, “No, It would have to not exceed $20,000”. 



 

5 

 

 
Councilmember, Committee Member Boney informed Ms. Session-Mathis that with what 
was currently proposed, possibly three, but definitely only two rooms of new flooring. 
 
Ms. Session-Mathis informed that she would not be opposed to carpet and/or tile instead 
of the flooring because of it being costly.  
 
Councilmember, Committee member Boney asked staff if they could provide quotes for 
cheaper carpet and tile. 
 
Mr. Spriggs informed that they would present the Committee with a plan B. 
 
Councilmember, Committee member Boney informed to provide a plan B and C prior to 
going to carpet in case there is something in between. 
 
Chairperson Reiter asked if that was a motion.   

 
Motion by:  Councilmember, Committee Member Boney moved to have staff 

provide quotes for alternative floor replacement at a lower cost. 
 

Second: Committee Member Pearson. 
 
Mr. Spriggs informed that if more was spent than the budget amount, funds from 
another fund year’s allocations would be pulled.  
 
Committee member Pearson informed Ms. Session-Mathis that she chose to not 
accept the stoves that the program would provide. That meant that she said “no” to 
that item. From the burglar bar situation, staff made a recommendation.   
 
Ms. Session-Mathis informed that she said “no” to the recommendation of not 
repairing the oven, however, she would accept the knobs.  
 
Mr. Spriggs informed that the expense of the knobs were currently in the budget and 
they could be replaced. 
 
Mr. Spriggs informed that, from what was currently decided, flooring was the priority. 
Staff would provide quotes for a plan B and C. 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
The vote as follows: 
 
Ayes: Chairperson Reiter; Committee member Rasmus; Councilmember 
Boney; Committee member Pearson; Committee member Eugene.  
 
Nayes: None. 
 
The motion passed. 

 
b) Keith & LaShawn Cooper – Request for Electrical Reimbursement 

 
Program Coordinator, Chalisa Dixon presented this item. Ms. Dixon informed that a special 
request was being made by the Coopers. It was presented to the Committee during the 



 

6 

 

previous meeting in regards to the appliance reimbursement. The Coopers were in program 
year 2014 with 5th Ward. Contractor 5th Ward completed some electrical repairs to their 
home for installing a HVAC unit. The electrical wiring was causing problems, as far as lights 
flickering on and off. The Cooper stated that surges and different things happening on the 
property were caused by the electrical work. The refrigerator and the stove were damaged. 
A receipt from Conn’s was provided by the Coopers in the amount of $2,294. They were 
seeking reimbursement for the replacement of the refrigerator and stove.  
 
Ms. Dixon informed that the 3rd party contractor stated that the electrical lines were crossed 
in the box. Half of the home was pulling 240 watts, the other half was pulling 120 watts. 
Due to that surge, anything plugged into one side of the home would cause an overload. 
 
Ms. Dixon informed that staff is asking the Committee to review the scope of work and 
information presented for a determination. 
 
Ms. Dixon informed that the scope of work with Fort Bend Habitat for Humanity was $9,100.  
The appliance invoice for the replacement of those items was $2,294.  
 
Chairperson Reiter informed that it seemed as if the Coopers should go after the 
contractors and not CDBG, Community Development Block Grant, and asked why they did 
not. 
 
Ms. Dixon informed that it was unknown how the contractor ended with CDBG, which was 
Fifth Ward Community Development Corporation and if the Coopers was pursing 5th Ward 
in regards to workmanship.  
 
Chairperson Reiter informed that that would need to be found out. 
 
Ms. Dixon informed that the Coopers returned to CDBG due to the contract being made 
through the program. 5th Ward was a subcontractor through CDBG. 
 
Chairperson Reiter informed her suggestion would be that the Coopers would need to take 
the item to small claims court.  
 
Councilmember, Committee Member Boney asked for his understanding, if it was an 
instance that occurred from a prior contractor, 5th Ward. 
 
Mr. Spriggs informed that Fort Bend Habitat for Humanity came in to help with the 
emergency repairs to get the Coopers back into their home. The Coopers were asking for 
reimbursement for damages that happened prior. 
 
Councilmember, Committee Member Boney informed that the Coopers should seek the 
reimbursement from the original contractor. 
 

Motion by: Committee member Pearson moved to have Keith &   LaShawn Cooper 
pursue reimbursement from 5th Ward contractors through small claims 
court. 

 
Second: Vice Chairperson Rasmus 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
The vote as follows: 



 

7 

 

 
Ayes: Chairperson Reiter; Committee member Rasmus; Councilmember, 
Committee member Boney; Committee member Pearson; Committee member 
Eugene. 
 
Nayes: None. 
 
The motion passed. 

 
c) Alicia Blum – Request to meet with the CDAC, Scope of work exceeds allotted cap 

(Homeowner was not present).  

 
Program Coordinator, Chalisa Dixon presented this item. Ms. Dixon informed that the roof 
and foundation repair were discussed during the previous CDAC meeting. The Committee 
decided to take the request of the homeowner to only repair the roof, in the amount of 
$11,000. Fort Bend Habitat for Humanity was the contractor assigned to the property. Upon 
them inspecting the home, they were greeted by individuals who stated they were renters 
of the home. Due to investigation, it was discovered that the home was online as an Air 
BnB.  
 
Ms. Dixon presented an ad of the Air BnB and the residence profile. The concern of staff 
was that the program requires for the resident to occupy the home full-time. Ms. Blum did 
not provide the additional income. Only the social security income was documented.  
 
Chairperson Reiter asked if Ms. Blum qualified for the program. 
 
Ms. Dixon informed that due to the two issues of Ms. Blum not living in the home and not 
fully disclosing income, she may not qualify. 
 
Chairperson Reiter asked if any work had been started on the home.  
 
Ms. Dixon replied, “No.” 
 
Mr. Spriggs informed that there was only a lead-based inspection.  
 
Committee member Pearson informed that could result as fraud.  

 
Mr. Spriggs informed that staff’s recommendation was to rescind the previous approvals. 
A letter would be sent informing of noncompliance of requirements. If Ms. Blum wanted to 
prove that the claims were false, she would be able to. 
 
Committee member Pearson asked if the claims are legitimate, Ms. Blum applied and she 
provided all the information, could reimbursement to the program be pursued for the money 
spent on the inspections.  
 
Mr. Spriggs informed that anyone in violation of the HUD, Housing and Urban Development 
policy would be obligated to repay.  
 
Assistant City Manager, Bill Atkinson asked for the cost of the inspections. 
 

Ms. Dixon informed that it was $350 for the lead-based inspection. 
 



 

8 

 

Motion by: Councilmember, Committee Member Boney moved to rescind all prior 
approvals based on noncompliance of the homeowner. 

 
Second: Vice Chairperson Rasmus 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
The vote as follows: 
 
Ayes: Chairperson Reiter; Committee Member Rasmus; Councilmember 
Boney; Committee member Pearson; Committee member Eugene. 
 
Nayes: None. 
 
The motion passed. 

 
4. CODE ENFORCEMENT REPORT 

 
Assistant City Manager, Bill Atkinson informed that they would be looking into the Air BnB 
issues through the Code Enforcement Task Force. 
 

5. CDBG PROGRAM UPDATES 

b) Housing Study Scope of Work  
 
Program Coordinator, Chalisa Dixon presented this item. Ms. Dixon informed that originally 
when the housing study was presented as a RFP, Request for Proposal, staff was informed 
by the City’s Finance Department that due to the cost of the study being under $50,000, it 
could be presented as a scope of work and bid process.  
 
Ms. Dixon informed that staff met with Committee member Zelia Brown. Ms. Brown 
reviewed the revised scope of work and was in agreement that most of the items identified 
were in consistent with what other cities were doing. Staff will present the study results to 
the CDAC and Council on or after June 31st. 
 

Motion by: Committee member Boney moved to approve the housing study scope 
of work as presented.  

 
Second: Committee Member Rasmus 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
The vote as follows: 
 
Ayes: Chairperson Reiter; Committee member Rasmus; Councilmember 
Boney; Committee member Pearson; Committee member Eugene. 
 
Nayes: None. 
 
The motion passed. 

 
 Chairperson Reiter informed that as an update for CDBG, $284,700 for the upcoming  

fiscal year would be received. Last year, $272,000 was received. There was a slight increase.  
 



 

9 

 

Program Coordinator, Chalisa Dixon provided an update on Ms. Viola Abrams, who was a 
participant in program year 2015. There were a few items to address for the property. Fort 
Bend Habitat for Humanity was able to take care of those items. Ms. Abrams had issues to 
present to the Committee in regards to previous work that was conducted two years ago. Staff 
had a meeting scheduled to visit the property for investigation. Depending on the outcome, the 
case may be closed.  
 
Ms. Dixon informed that FY19 allocations were received in the amount of $284,700. In addition 
to the allocation, the program was reward $1.4 million approximately through the Section 108 
Loan Program. It is a program that HUD allows to assist with areas of decline within the 
program boundary. The rewarded amount would be used for the community, as in housing 
rehab and other items in regards to the program.  
 
Mr. Spriggs informed that it would most likely be used towards economic development related 
projects. 
 
Committee member Pearson informed that he had spoken to Anthony Snipes (City Manager) 
and Joe Esch (Economic Development Director) about ways to utilize the grant awards to 
enhance certain areas like 5th Street.  
 
Chairperson Reiter informed that it would depend on the cost of it, if it is cheaper to issue 
bonds, or if the interest rate is such that it is cheaper to go with the reward. Staff will provide 
more information in the months to come.  
 
Mr. Spriggs informed that staff would present pros and cons of the program.  
 
Mr. Spriggs informed that staff asked if the Committee could review the provided input on a 
sample budget. The Committee would need to prioritize where the funding would go in the next 
consolidated plan year. There are four years to plan for in the time period.  
 
Chairperson Reiter asked if the Committee could be provided with the current waiting list for 
housing rehab for the next meeting. 
 
Staff replied, “Yes”. 

 
6. Public Comment: None.  

 
7. Adjourn. 

 
Adjourn. 
Chairperson Reiter adjourned the meeting at 7:15 p.m. 

 
___________________________________________ 
Eunice Reiter, Chairperson 



 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Cover Memo 
May 16, 2019  

 

To: Community Development Advisory Committee  
Agenda Item: 3(a). Santex Construction, LLC.   
Submitted by: Chalisa G. Dixon - Community Development Coordinator 
 

SYNOPSIS 

 
Santex Construction LLC was awarded a contract to provide housing rehabilitation services to 
eligible residents approved by Council during the October 15, 2018 Council meeting.  
 

BACKGROUND 

 

Santex Construction LLC has extensive experience in a variety of home repairs, remodels and 
builds, including disaster recovery. The key personal has over a decade of rehabilitation 
experience The references provided praised their communication, professionalism and timeliness 
which are indispensable qualities as a construction company.   
 
Santex Construction, LLC is working concurrently with Fort Bend Habitat for Humanity to facilitate 
the needs of the Housing Rehabilitation program. 
 
In attendance from Santex Construction, LLC. is Javier Santos, President; Tara Santos, Senior 
Vice-President; Chris Linares, General Manager; and Brittany Santos, Project Coordinator.  
.  

FISCAL ANALYSIS 

 
Administrative and program funding is provided through HUD. 
 

SUPPORTING MATERIALS 

 

 Santex Construction Contract  

 2017 Housing Rehabilitation Applicant List 
 

STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the CDAC conduct the requested discussion with Housing Rehab 
contractor Santex Construction, LLC.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 





























Column1 Column2 Column6 Column8 Column9 Column10 Column122 Column13 Column15

Name
File # 

(received)
Disabled No. in HH Income

Income 

Range
City, State, Zip Address

Sent to 

Contractor

1 Evelyn Johnson 2/12/2018 Y 1 15,456$       <=30% Missouri City, TX 77489 3328 Palm Desert Ln Santex 

2 Linda Londo McGuire 2/20/2018 Y 2 28,188$       30.1%-50% Missouri City, TX 77489 2055 Feather Ridge Dr Habitat

3 Mason L Vesser 3/2/2018 Elderly 1 1,995$         <=30% Missouri City, TX 77489 3506 Samuel Adams Ln Habitat

4 Celestine Allums 2/24/2018 Y 1 34,000$       30.1%-50% Missouri City, TX 77489 1103 Manorglen Dr Santex

5 Audra Harrison 2/24/2018 N 3 41,665$       30.01%-50% Missouri City, TX 77489 3423 Meadowview Dr Habitat

Brenda George Mackey Lang 2/24/2018 N 1 1,995$         <=30% Missouri City, TX 77489 3506 Samuel Adams Ln Santex

6 Mozelle Simpson 2/26/2018 N 1 19,104$       <=30% Missouri City, TX 77489 647 Stephanie Dr Habitat

7 Margo Benge 2/27/2018 N 1 15,000$       <=30% Missouri City, TX 77489 2722 North Doral Dr

8 Geraldine Jackson 2/27/2018 N 1 1,205$         <=30% Missouri City, TX 77489 1822 Kingman Dr

9 Belinda G. Lovett 2/28/2018 N 1 34,000$       30.1% -50% Missouri City, TX 77489 1903 Eastfield Dr

10 Richard M. Trojanowski 2/28/2018 N 4 61,117$       50.1% - 80% Missouri City, TX 77489 4415 Village View

11 Birdie D. Canida 2/28/2018 N 2 38,070$       30.1%-50% Missouri City, TX 77489 2603 Oak Hill Dr

12 Phyllis Simpson 2/28/2018 Y 2 2,694$         <=30% Missouri City, TX 77489 1655 Meadow Green Dr

13 Vesser Mason 3/2/2018 N 1 19,748$       <=30% Missouri City, TX 77489 906 Manorglen

14 Zelda Dashiell 3/5/2018 N 2 30,710$       30.1%-50% Missouri City, TX 77489 1239 Birchstone Dr

2017 Housing Rehabilitation 



15 Patricia A. Ray 3/9/2018 N 1 24,203$       30.1%-50% Missouri City, TX 77489 12603 Kittybrook Ln

16 Carolyn Grace Ford 3/9/2018 N 3 119,671$    Missouri City, TX 77489 1411 Green Mansions Ct

17 Edna Mayers 3/13/2018 Y 3 1,150$         <=30% Missouri City, TX 77489 1318 Gentle Bend Dr

18 LuEthel Henry 3/13/2018 Y 1 1,225$         <=30% Missouri City, TX 77489 2726 Broadmoor Cir

19 Bernice C. Jasper 3/15/2018 N 1 1,056$         <=30% Missouri City, TX 77489 1310 Cowden Court

20 Cheryre Ann Jones 3/15/2018 N 1 35,728$       30.1%-50% Missouri City, TX 77489 11830 S. Marcia Cir

21 Milton & Crystal Renee Lopez 3/16/2018 (2) Y /(2) N 4 110,000$    50.1 %-80% Missouri City, TX 77489 15431 W. Willowwind Cir

22 Belva J. Milton 3/20/2018 N 2 43,980$       50.1% - 80% Missouri City, TX 77489 2338 River Valley Dr

23 Thomas & Glennda Amick 3/21/2018 N 2 48,000$       50.1%-80% Missouri City, TX 77489 15423 W. Barbara Cir

24
Sheila Neumann_Has Received 

Serv
3/27/2018 Y 1 13,200$       <=30% Missouri City, TX 77489 3110 Southern Hills Dr

25 Chantee' & Nathan Hale 3/27/2018 N 3 916,710$    50.01% -80% Missouri City, TX 77489 11779 N Evelyn Cir

26 Richard & Janice Gross 3/28/2018 N 2 Missouri City, TX 77489 2107 Heatherwood



 

 

 

 

 
Agenda Item Cover Memo 

May 16, 2019  
 

To: Community Development Advisory Committee  
Agenda Item: 3(b) Cynthia Session Mathis  
Submitted by: Chalisa G. Dixon - Community Development Coordinator 
 

SYNOPSIS 

 
Homeowner is a PY2016 program year recipient. Ms. Mathis’ project was delayed due to one of 
our current contractor’s decision to exit and cancel the pending contract because of 
disagreements between owner and contactor.  The homeowner, Ms. Mathis is currently being 
serviced by Santex Construction, LLC. 
 

BACKGROUND 

 
The Scope of Work included the removal/replace wood floor panels in master bedroom, den, and 
living room quoted at $395.15, as the resident was to provide panels for the replacement.  Upon 
further inspection, Santex identified that no moisture barrier was installed over the concrete 
substrate prior to the flooring being installed; as a result, moisture is developing under the glued-
down wood flooring, causing discoloration and damage to the existing floor.  
 
Staff was advised this problem would continue to persist in the future even should the original 
work scope areas are repaired.  The only way to 100% prevent the deterioration of the wood floor 
is to completely remove it in its entirety, install a new moisture barrier and wood floor, however 
the submitted an estimate of $27,951.54 exceed the $20,000 allowed by HUD. 
 
Santex has provided four (4) options of replacement flooring. The following estimates have been 
attached for the Committee’s review: 
 

1. Estimate for Carpet Flooring ($13,047.50) 
2. Estimate for Laminate Flooring ($20,819.45) 
3. Estimate for Tile Flooring ($23,864.28) 
4. Estimate for Vinyl Plank ($19,760.38) 

 

FISCAL ANALYSIS 

 
Administrative and program funding is provided through HUD. 

SUPPORTING MATERIALS 

 Original Scope of Work Contract ($10,138.09) 

 Estimate for Carpet Flooring ($13,047.50) 

 Estimate for Laminate Flooring ($20,819.45) 

 Estimate for Tile Flooring ($23,864.28) 

 Estimate for Vinyl Plank ($19,760.38) 



STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

 
Staff recommends that the CDAC considers the original Scope of Work of $10,138.09 and 
select a flooring option not to exceed $20,000 maximum budget per HUD policies (difference of 
9,861.91).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









































































 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item Cover Memo 
May 16, 2019 

 
 

To:   Community Development Advisory Committee 
Agenda Items: 4a. CDBG Program Updates: Consolidated Plan Discussion  
Submitted by: Chalisa G. Dixon - Community Development Coordinator 
 

SYNOPSIS 

The City of Missouri City is currently underway with its completing Program Years (PY) 2016 and 
commencing on 2017 projects. 

 

BACKGROUND 
 

1. Program Activities Prioritization: 
 

Staff has begun the new Consolidated Plan development, which is due to HUD by August 
15, 2019.  The majority of the Plan will be performed in-house in the IDIS program module, 
supplemented by the allotted $8,000 approved by the CDAC for consulting services.   Staff 
will be providing engagement opportunities before the CDAC in the coming meetings. 
 
The Fiscal Year (FY) 2019 budget for the Department of Housing and Urban Development 
has been enacted.The City full-year allocations for the Office of Community Planning and 
Development's (CPD) formula Community Development Block Grants Program (CDBG) 
for FY 19 is $284,700. The 2019 CDBG allocations were based on the July 1, 2017 
population estimates and the 2012-2016 ACS data, whereas the 2018 allocations were 
based on the July 1, 2016 population estimates and the 2011-2015 ACS data. Missouri 
City’s allocation increased by $12,600.   
 
The City of Missouri City is undertaking the new budget cycle process which impacts this 
new allocation.   Staff is recommending that the CDAC begins its process for allocating 
the budget make-up for the upcoming Consolidated Plan Period (2018-2022) over the 
course of the next three (3) months. 
 
The following sample budget parameters are suggested by staff for consideration and fine-
tuning:   

 
Sample Budget: PY2018 (City FY 2019-2020) 

 
 Public Service Activities    Funding Allocation (Cap: 15% of total 
funding) 

 Fort Bend Seniors Meals on Wheels   $ ________ 

 Child Advocates     $ ________ 

 Educational Scholarships                                          $ ________ 

 Edison Art      $ ________ 



 New Agency(ies)     $ ________ 
Total:  $ 42,705.00 

 
Non-Public Service Activities     Funding Allocation 

 Community Dev. Project     $  _______ 

 Parks        $  _______ 

 Infrastructure             $  _______  

 Housing Rehabilitation                                               $  _______ 

 Code Enforcement                                                     $  47,000.00 

 Administration   (Cap: 20% of total funding):             $  56,940.00_ 
Total:   $ 241,995.00 

 
Grand Total:   $284,700.00 

 
 

2. Section 108 Program: 
HUD provides for a loan guarantee component of CDBG funds. The Section 108 Loan 
Guarantee Program offers communities a source of financing for economic development; 
housing rehabilitation, public facilities, and other invest in economic development projects.  
 
Based upon our demographic requirements of designated Opportunity Zones, and CDBG 
FY 19 allocation the City of Missouri City has $1,423,500 available in Section 108 
borrowing authority. The City would be required to secure the loan by pledging current or 
future CDBG allocations to either repay the loan or secure it. The maximum repayment 
period for a Section 108 loan is twenty years, interest rates are charged on interim borrowing. 
 
Depending on the type of project, the City would have two basic options for using the loan 
funds: 

 Loan the funds to a third party developer are known as third party loans; or 
 Directly expend the funds on the project. 

 
 

3. Choice Neighborhood Planning Grant: 
The Choice Neighborhoods Planning Grants Program is a HUD funded program that 
provides funding to create and/or implement a plan to revitalize distressed housing and 
surrounding neighborhoods. The program focuses on three core goals: 

1) Housing: Replace distressed public and assisted housing with high-quality 
mixed income housing that is well-managed and responsive to the needs of the 
surrounding neighborhood; 

2) People: Improve outcomes of households living in the target housing related to 
employment and income, health, and children’s education; and 

3) Neighborhood: Create the conditions necessary for public and private 
reinvestment in distressed neighborhoods to offer the kinds of amenities and 
assets, including safety, good schools, and commercial activity, that are 
important to families’ choices about their community 



Funding from the grant can be used for various activities such as community improvements, 

recycling of vacant property, community gardens, beautification/community arts projects; 

business façade improvement. 
 
 

4. Volunteer Services:  
In an effort to provide additional resources and options for the residents of Missouri City, 
staff has made contact with several agencies to continue our public partnerships: 
 

 First Methodist Church: Our contact with First Methodist Church confirmed their 
Missions Committee and volunteers will continue to assist Missouri City residents 
with some of their impactful home repairs. Due to the limitations of their volunteers, 
the church focuses on minor home repairs rather than rehabilitation.  
 

 Home Depot: Staff has been in contact with Home Depot located at 5900 S Texas 
6, Missouri City, TX 77459 in an effort to collaborate as they are preparing to 
submit their Community Impact Grant. The General Manager is seeking senior 
citizens, veterans or residents in need of landscaping improvements and exterior 
repairs. Staff has provided rehabilitation information for several residents currently 
on our waiting list.  

 
 Volunteers of America: Contact has been made with this organization in an effort 

to continue our public partnership. Volunteers of America offered quite a bit of 
Hurricane Harvey assistance, where the CDBG Program could not accommodate.  

 
 

5. PY18 – PY19 Application Process: 
In an effort to ensure the CDBG Program will be most effective, staff will be re-evaluating 
the application process for the Housing Rehab program. Staff will be working with the 
Legal Team to update the applications in an effort to clarify program policies and 
guidelines.  
 

 
A request for the CDAC Committee to discuss future meeting dates. 

 
 

SUPPORTING MATERIALS 

 

 Sample PY19 Budget Allocations  
 

STAFF’S RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the CDAC receives listed updates by the Development Services 
Department.   
 

 



City of Missouri City PY 2018 CDBG Activities City of Missouri City PY 2019 CDBG Activities

Public Services Activity (15% Cap=$40,801)

PY 18 Actual 

Allocated 

Amount

PY 19 

Proposed 

Allocated 

Amount

Public Services Activity (15% Cap=$42,705)

Post-secondary Scholarships for College or Technical School 

Students $9,975.00 $11,205.00

Post-secondary Scholarships for College or Technical 

School Students

Meals on Wheels Home-delivered Meals for the elderly $10,200.00 $10,500.00 Public Service Activity (1)

Child Advocates Forensic Interviewing & Counseling for 

Abused/Neglected Children $10,200.00 $10,500.00 Public Service Activity (2)

Edison Art $10,426.00 $10,500.00 Public Service Activity (3)

Total $40,801.00 $42,705.00 Total

Housing Rehabilitation Program Housing Rehabilitation Program
Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation $92,804.60 $100,000.00 Owner Occupied Housing Rehabilitation

Renter Occupied Housing Rehabilitation- Fifth Street $37,000.00 $38,055.00 Non-Public Service Activitiy 

Public Facilities and Neighborhood Facilities Public Facilities and Neighborhood Facilities 

N/A N/A

Code Enforcement Activity Code Enforcement Activity
Code Enforcement $47,000.00 $47,000.00 Code Enforcement 

Economic Development Economic Development

Program Administration (20% Cap= $54,401.4) Program Administration (20% Cap= $56,940)
Salary & Benefits 40,076.40$  41,440.00$  Salary & Benefits

Consultant 8,000.00$    8,000.00$    Professional Services 

Travel & Training 4,200.00$    4,200.00$    Travel & Training

Dues  &Subscription 1,100.00$    1,100.00$    Dues  &Subscription

Publication & Delivery Cost 1,000.00$    1,200.00$    Publication & Delivery Cost

Fair Housing 25.00$          1,000.00$    Fair Housing Activity(ies)
Total $54,401.40 $56,940.00 Total

Available Resources Available Resources
PY 2018 HUD Allocation $272,007.00 $284,700.00 PY 2019 HUD Allocation

PY 2016 Fair Housing Plan &Housing Study Plan (* Counted 

in the Unexpended amount) $30,000*

PY 2018 Unobligated Carry-over Funds  *(Remaining 

$20,000 will be unobligated and can carryover to FY2018; 

We will have more carry over fund we are just not sure 

exact amount until June 30th, we are anticipating appx. 

total $24,045) $20,000.00
Unexpended Carry-over Funds to FY2018 for prior year 

obligated projects. (PY 15 Projects unexpended: $83,315 

for PY 15 Housing Rehabilitation; $9,617.57 for PY 15 

Housing Rehabilitation ADC; $113,000 for PY 15 Parks)   

*(PY 16 Projects unexpended: $21,374.66 for PY 16 

Housing Rehabilitation ADC; $75,612.00 for PY 16 Housing 

Rehabilitation; $72,400.00 for PY 16 Parks)                                                                                                                                         $323,845.56

Total $615,852.56 Total


